ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 26, 2001
3:25 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Andrew Hal cro, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Kevin Meyer
Representative Pete Kott

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representative Harry Crawford
Representati ve Joe Hayes

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Lisa Miurkowski, Chair
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 128
"An  Act relating to enploynent of certain mnors in
agriculture.”

- HEARD AND HELD; ASSI GNED TO SUBCOW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 67

"An Act requiring proof of notor vehicle insurance in order to
register a notor vehicle; and relating to notor vehicle
liability insurance for taxicabs.”

- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 128

SHORT TI TLE: EMPLOYMENT OF M NORS | N AGRI CULTURE
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) OGAN

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

02/ 14/ 01 0317 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 14/ 01 0317 (H L&C

02/ 14/ 01 0317 (H REFERRED TO LABOR & COWVMERCE

03/ 26/ 01 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -1- March 26, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE SCOTT OGAN

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 108

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Introduced the bill as the sponsor of HB
128.

Rl CHARD MASTRI ANO, Director

Di vi sion of Labor Standards and Safety

Department of Labor and Wor kf orce Devel opnment ( DLVD)

3301 Eagl e Street

Anchor age, Al aska 99503

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified for the division in opposition to
HB 128.

LARRY DeVI LBI SS, Carrot Farner;

State Board Menber, Al aska Farm Bureau
HC04- 9302

Pal mer, Al aska 99645

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 128.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-40, SIDE A
Number 0001

VICE CHAIR ANDREW HALCRO called the House Labor and Conmerce
Standing Committee neeting to order at 3:25 p.m Those present
at the call to order included Representatives Halcro, Kott,
Rokeberg, and Hayes; Representatives Meyer and Crawford arrived
as the nmeeting was in progress.

HB 128- EMPLOYMENT OF M NORS | N AGRI CULTURE

VI CE CHAI R HALCRO announced that the commttee would hear HOUSE
BILL NO 128, "An Act relating to enploynment of certain mnors
in agriculture.™

Nunmber 0053

REPRESENTATI VE SCOIT OGAN, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor of
HB 128, stated that he introduced the bill because he lives in
an agricultural district in Palnmer and is surrounded by farns;
farms require a great deal of |abor, he said. One of [these
farnms], owned by Larry DeVil biss, grows carrots. He stated that
the Departnment of Labor and Workforce Devel opnent (DLWD) has to

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 2- March 26, 2001



sign a work permt for a person who is between the ages of
fourteen and seventeen who wi shes to work on a farm There is a
generation of kids that don't have a work ethic, he enphasized,
and nmany get in trouble.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN remarked that the labor laws are well-
neaning and there are sone appropriate reasons for them
however, in the long run, [these |aws] have actually harmed our
young people by not teaching them a good work ethic. Pl us, he
said, [farners] are dependent on inexpensive labor that 1is
undesired by adults. He recounted that many farners have told
him that they have had people quit working on the farm because
they can make nore noney on the [Alaska Tenporary Assistance
Program (ATAP)].

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN asked the committee to seriously consider

passing the bill out of commttee, thereby doing something for
Al askan kids but also doing sonething to help an industry that
isn't viable in this state. He commented that farmng is a

viable industry but it has gotten a bad reputation in past years
because all of the big projects that the state tried to junp-
start failed. There are sone tenacious people out there who are
making a living at this, and they work extrenely hard, he said.
If Alaska ever gets into a national security situation in the
Pacific Rim and shipping is cut off fromthe Lower 48, [Al aska]
is going to have sone real problens and Al askans wll be glad
that there are sone people with [stockpiles of vegetables].

Number 0399

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked what information is available that
indicates that this is a problem In | ooking through the bill
information, he said, he 1isn't seeing anything regarding
problens that the farnms are having with the tine between when a
person submts a work permt and when the comm ssioner of |[|abor
signs off on that permt. He referred to the sponsor statenent
where it says that a |ocal [Matanuska-Susitna] Valley farner had
i nformed Representative Ogan of this, but other than that, he
remarked, the information to justify the bill [is absent].

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN responded that the conmttee' s packet should
have included a list from the Farners Association of things it
would like to see acconplished. He deferred the question to
Larry DeVil biss, carrot farner

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 3- March 26, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE KOTT asked Representative Ogan if he envisioned
children over fourteen years of age picking vegetables or also
operating nachinery.

Nunmber 0568

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN replied that it would depend on the kid;
however, he wouldn't want young kids that weren't his own
wor ki ng on dangerous machi nery because of the possibility of a
liability suit if an injury occurred. There is a lot of "hand"
work that needs to be done; for exanple, M. DeVilbiss grows
organic carrots, which are picked by hand and then sorted and
washed.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT stated that there is a [limtation] in
statute that a conbination of school and work hours can't exceed
nine hours a day. And he pointed out that there is also a
prohibition in AS 23.10.350 that precludes enploynent of a
person under eighteen in an occupation dangerous to life or
i nb. He said driving a tractor or working around a conbine
would fall into that category, so [kids] would be precluded from
doi ng those | obs.

Number 0714

VICE CHAIR HALCRO stated that Representative Ogan had nmade the
comment about kids growing up without a work ethic. He referred
to an article he cane across last night, which he provided for
the commttee, showng that mnors in the workplace are a
growing problem in nost of the states. Currently, an estinated
5.5 mllion students between the ages of twelve and seventeen
wor k, which represents about two-thirds of the high school kids,
conpared to less than 5 percent, 50 years ago. Due to the |ow
unenpl oynent rate, enployers are going out trying to hire
younger ki ds. It appears that this bill gives a "blanket"
approval for any mnor at |east fourteen years of age who can
get witten permssion from his or her parents to work on a
farm He expressed approval if the mnor is picking vegetables;
however, if [these mnors] wll be working around [machinery],
it is cause for alarm He asked Representative Ogan if he is
aware of what is required when an enployer fills out the [work
permt].

Number 0820

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -4- March 26, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE OGAN deferred the question to M. DeVil biss. He
added that the tineliness of the DLMWD is an obvious problem or
el se the Farners Associ ation woul dn't have asked for it.

Number 0840

VICE CHAIR HALCRO nentioned that this brings up a |arger issue:
the training wage and the effectiveness with which the DLW
handl es the requests from vari ous enpl oyers.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG pointed out that the comrittee 1is
| ooki ng at youth enploynent, the training wage, and the problens
revol ving around the departnents. He said he has been told that
the use of a conveyor belt would be restricted under the
Occupational Safety and Health Adm nistration (OSHA) or other
standards, which, he said, he finds very disconcerting.

Phi |l osophically, he supports the bill; however, he asked
Representative QOgan if it is his intention that there be no
hourly restrictions and so forth. He said he is unsure as to

how this all fits into the whole statutory schene.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN explained that [the bill] would allow the
parent to give permssion for the kid to work on a farm which
he said shoul d be good enough. The state isn't the parents.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG stated that iif [a kid] is under
seventeen years of age, he or she could only work 30 hours [a
week]. He asked if this is in the same statute, because this is
not in the Wage and Hour Act.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN pointed out that this doesn't change any
| aws; he said there are adequate protections in place. Al the
[legislation does] is this: i nstead of the comm ssioner or the
departnent playing the parent, the parents are nmaking the
judgnent call.

VI CE CHAI R HALCRO pointed out that the formality is put in place
to make sure that rules are followed and kids are protected.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN agreed but said he would also assune that
this doesn't exclude people from following the law or limting
liability if they don't.

Number 1000

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT said this doesn't do anything to upset the
remaining portion of Title 23 that deals wth children in

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 5- March 26, 2001



enpl oynent . He said his concern is that if, for exanple, there
was a new OSHA requirenent, how would the parent know that he or
she wasn't in violation of that OSHA regul ation or rule?

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN asked: How does a bureaucrat that approves
the permt know whether [infractions to OSHA regul ations] are
there unless they go out and inspect [work sites]? He expressed
confidence that [the division] could go around and do this
anyway to make sure that workers are safe; it doesn't change
anyt hi ng.

Nunber 1074

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked who would be liable if sonething
happened to the child; he said it sounds as if [the legislature
is] taking away the state's responsibility and putting the onus
on the parent. So if the child was working with nachinery, for
exanple, would the state be liable if somethi ng happened?

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN said logic tells himthat the enpl oyer woul d
be liable because the business has to nmaintain workers
conpensati on for workers.

Nunmber 1153

RI CHARD MASTRIANO, Director, D vision of Labor Standards and
Safety, Departnent of Labor and Wrkforce Devel opnent (DLWD),
via tel econference, stated that he, too, lives in the Matanuska
Valley and said M. DeVilbiss is his borough assenbly
representative; he is famliar with the farmng situation out in
the valley; however, he is charged with the enforcenent of child
| abor | aws. And one of the tools that the division uses to
enforce those laws is the work permt.

MR. MASTRI ANO went on to answer sone of the questions raised by
commttee nenbers. The work permt is the vehicle to find out
what the enployer is going to have the child doing: what
equi pnent the child will be working with; what the rate of pay
will be; and when payday is. Anot her part of the permt is an
aut horization that the parent signs after reviewing the upper
half of the work permt to see what the kid will be doing. [The
parents] fill it out, and it becones the parent's authorization
to the comm ssioner or the departnment to allow the child to
wor K. Then the permt is submtted to the departnment for
revi ew. It is reviewed for hazardous orders and whether the
individual, in his or her age group, can performthe work |isted
on the permt.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 6- March 26, 2001



Nunmber 1266

MR. MASTRI ANO gave an exanpl e. There are a nunber of kids who
have driver's licenses and drive back and forth to school. He
said [kids] work to help finance cars, insurance, and so forth.
One of the things prohibited in state and federal law is mnors
under eighteen years of age driving a tractor that is over 20
hor sepower. Most of the tractors that he sees in the fields are
usual |y over 20 horsepower, so a kid wouldn't be able to drive a
tractor unless that child was the child of the owner of the
farm If parents were just going to be authorized to allow
their kids to work for a farm they mght not know about that
particul ar hazard. Agriculture is one of the nost grueling and
hazardous occupations in the United States, he said, and
Al aska's laws are nore stringent than those in other states.
[ Alaska] requires a work permit for children from age fourteen

until the seventeenth birthday. Once the seventeenth birthday
is reached, the child only needs proof of age to show that he or
she is over sixteen. At that point, he said, it becones the

responsibility of the departnent to go out and ensure that the
child isn't doing something that is a health hazard.

Nunmber 1368

MR. MASTRI ANO explained that the work permt also allows [the
division] to review other potential hazardous such as toxins
used in farm work, and gives [the division] the opportunity to
warn a farmer of potential nuscular or skeletal repetitive-
notion injuries.

Nunber 1425

MR. MASTRI ANO stated that [the division] is generally able to
turn a faxed work permt around in a matter of hours if proof of
the individual's age is submtted along wth the permt.
However, one of the things that enployers like to fax is a
driver's permt, but since it has a hologramon it, it blurs out
the birth date unless the lightest setting is used when copies

are nmade. He said many enployers think that [the division]
wants to be able to see what the mnor |ooks I|ike, but that
really isn't the concern. When the division sends [the work
permt] back saying that it is illegible, [an enployer] wll try

to get the picture to cone out right wthout reading the
statenment that says it is the birth date that is needed.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -7- March 26, 2001



MR. MASTRIANO said a nunber of J[enployers] fax in birth
certificates and [the division] is able to turn those around
al nost i mredi ately. If the work permt cones to the office
overnight or past 4 p.m, it may not be returned until the next
day. He added that [the division] has three offices that review
and sign work permts; and across the state, the job service
offices fax work permts [to the division]. People can go there
to have one sent if they don't have a fax machine.

MR. MASTRI ANO explained that it is inportant that [the enpl oyer]
give [the division] the fax nunber or address where the work
permt can be sent. He stated that [the division] tries to
accomodat e the enployer. Allowing parents to authorize work
W thout the departnment's review could place kids in a harnfu
situation wthout the know edge of the parent or even the
enpl oyer, because the enployers don't know all of the hazardous
orders. As long as there are hazardous orders, [the division]
is required to enforce them he expl ai ned.

Nunber 1554

VICE CHAIR HALCRO pointed out that one of the reasons for this
| egislation is the concern that "by the tine the request works
its way through the maze of beuracracy, the harvest season is
over." He sought verification that M. Mastriano had said that
[the work permts] are normally turned around in a couple of
hours unl ess there is a problem

MR. MASTRIANO replied affirmatively. In the summertine, he
sai d, because the fax machine is so popular, it may take | onger
than an hour because on sone days [the division] processes 200
to 300 work permts. The fax machine can't keep up; there is
one person assigned to handle nothing but work permts and get
themto an investigator to review

Number 1602

VICE CHAIR HALCRO asked: If the situation occurs in which the
fax doesn't cone in clearly or information needs to be followed
up on, what is the average tinmefrane for a response of approva
or denial ?

MR. MASTRI ANO said it depends on what [the division is] |ooking
for; ordinarily, a formw |l be faxed back telling the enployer
what is needed for approval. This generally goes back about the
sanme tinme that the work permt would, but, again, is based on
how busy the tel ephone is at the tine.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 8- March 26, 2001



VICE CHAIR HALCRO asked if there has ever been a situation in
which [the division] denied a permt because a nmnor was ¢oing
to be working around harnful chem cals or unsafe machinery.

Nunber 1681

MR. MASTRIANO replied that there have been several occasions,
none that he could recall in the farm industry regarding
chem cals, but situations in which kids were going to work on a
potato digger, which 1is equipnent considered hazardous for

anyone under the age of eighteen. [ The division] has denied
several work permts to have kids doing other types of work such
as slicing food, or working wth bakery rmachinery or

construction equipnent not authorized for mnors to be around.
He said [the division] has also had parents conme in and w thdraw
their authorization for their child to work, and those are
handl ed in the sanme expeditious manner.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT asked: If a child works under the direct
supervision of a parent in a business owned and operated by the
parent, is he or she exenpt fromthat permtting process?

MR. MASTRIANO replied that [the parents] are exenpt from the
child labor |aw altogether. VWhat the parent is told is that
[the division] hopes that the child isn't going to be placed in
a situation that is going to cause injury or harm He explained
that one of the caveats for that is that [the child] nust be in
the direct supervision of the parent; the parent can't |eave the
child in sonmeone el se's supervi sion.

Nunber 1759

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT referred to Section 2, paragraph (2), of the
bill, "The mnor perfornms the work in the physical presence of
one of the mnors parents or |egal guardians”. He asked whet her
[ Alaska] has any provisions that wuld afford that sane
opportunity if custody of that m nor has been set by court order
to anot her person who is granted |egal custody of that m nor.

MR. MASTRI ANO responded that the work permt says that the

parent or |egal guardian nust authorize the work. If a child
cones in to [the division office] and says that he or she isn't
getting along with his or her parents, and is living wth
sonmeone else - wunless the guardian is court-appointed - [the

division] won't issue a work permt.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 9- March 26, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE KOIT asked if Section 2, paragraph (2), is even
necessary.

Nunber 1848

MR. MASTRI ANO stated that if the work permt requirenent is
elimnated, then it 1is necessary in agriculture because the
parent is authorizing [the child] to work. For paragraph (2),
no witten authorization would need to be given to the farner;
just the presence of the parent would be enough to allow the
child to work with the parent.

VICE CHAIR HALCRO pointed out that the provision in |aw that
says it has to be a |egal guardian makes sense because if there
was a mnor who disconnected from his or her famly and was
living with soneone else, and the mnor was injured or Kkilled,
certainly the parents could bring suit against the state for
allowing the mnor to do that.

MR. MASTRI ANO went on to another point. He said one of the
questions asked was regarding ages of mnors and work
requi renents. He explained that fourteen- and fifteen-year olds
do have an hour requirenent. When school is not in session,
they are allowed to work up to 40 hours a week, no nore than 8
hours a day, and cannot start before 5 a.m or work after 9 p.m

When school is in session, the requirenent is stricter and
becomes 7 a.m to 7 p.m, no nore than 18 hours a week, and no
nore than 9 hours a day conbining school and work. For

fourteen- and fifteen-year-olds, [the division] really restricts
hours, but for sixteen- and seventeen-year-olds, the only
restriction is that they cannot work nore than six days a week.

Nunmber 1963

MR. MASTRI ANO said [the division] has had a nunber of requests
from schools to try to change that, but at this point it
remai ns. People wunder the age of weighteen are the only
enpl oyees currently in the state that are required to have a 30-
mnute break if required to work six consecutive hours.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT asked M. Mustriano to direct him to the
section that deals with the hours that a mnor under sixteen can
wor k.

MR MASTRI ANO stated that he didn't have this information with
him but said it is in the child |abor section; he offered to

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -10- March 26, 2001



get it for the commttee. He added that the hours are listed on
the front page of the work permit so there is no [confusion].

Nunber 2011

VICE CHAIR HALCRO asked M. Mastriano if the departnment opposes
HB 128.

MR. MASTRIANO replied affirmatively. He said there are other
ways to help the farnmers if they are having difficulty with the
work permt process, and he said he would be willing to work
wth them to elimnate [the problens]. When asked what [that
assistance mght] be, he replied that he has offered to go out
to the [Matanuska-Susitna]l Valley, particularly at harvest tineg,
and be available for the farnmers hiring help. He wunder st ood
that when [a farnmer] needs help, it is needed right away.

MR. MASTRI ANO expl ained that the sanme thing was encountered in
the fish processing [industry], where a nunber of sixteen- and
seventeen-year-olds are hired. [ The division] nmakes itself
avail able; the enployer goes out and hires the kids that it
thinks it's going to need for fish processing; and [the
division] signs the work permts, reviews the work, and goes out
to each of the processing plants and wal ks the sline line to see
where these individuals will be enployed before starting work.
This affords the opportunity to point out anything hazardous to
the enployer, and the enployer then has the work permts ready
so when the time cones, the kids can be called to work.

Nunmber 2061

MR. MASTRI ANO pointed out that [the division] offered to do the
sanme thing for the farmers. [The division] will go out and nake
itself available in the valley prior to harvest time and get al
the workers hired; when it's tine to harvest, [the enployer]
will be ready to go. He expressed a concern that if a |ot of
these kids are going to be used for harvest help, and won't be
full-time enployees, they nmay not be covered by workers'
conpensation [insurance]. Wor ker s’ conpensation has an
exenption for harvest and part-tinme help, he said, so there may
be a liability there for the farnmer that he or she nmay not be
awar e of.

VICE CHAIR HALCRO asked what percentage of these work permts
take | onger than a couple of hours to process.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -11- March 26, 2001



MR. MASTRI ANO replied that this includes very few. This is the
first tinme he has ever had a conplaint about the work permt
turnaround [tine], although he has had a conplaint about the
fact that [the division] requires proof of age. [ The division]
has made every accommobdation possible, he said, and has even
gone so far as to go out to the Alaska State Fair and sit there
for two days before the fair opens to ensure that any child who
wants to work at the fairgrounds is afforded the opportunity to
come in and get a work permt.

Nunmber 2178

LARRY DeVILBISS, Carrot Farmer; State Board Menber, Al aska Farm
Bur eau; via teleconference, t hanked t he conmittee and
Representative Ogan for considering this |egislation. Up unti

| ast summer he was operating in ignorance about a lot of the
state laws, he said; there are probably not a l|ot of other
farmers testifying because they were shocked to find out what
the | aw was. By the time the education process is over, nore
will be comng forward; however, at this point they are afraid
to incrimnate thenselves. He said when he called the DLW | ast
sutmmer and was told about the work permt conditions and
restrictions, he said he didn't have any problens; however, he
had difficulty with the forns. [His farn] is about five mles
from the end of an optic line, so the fax machine [output] is
dirty, and every tinme he tried to fax a permt, he'd get a fax
back from [the division] saying that it couldn't be signed
because it was illegible. He was inforned that he'd have to go
to Anchorage or to an office in Wasilla.

Nunber 2331

MR. DeVILBISS exclained that he frankly threw his hands in the
air and decided it wasn't going to work because he couldn't
drive to Anchorage everytinme he had a kid who wanted to work.
And a lot of tinmes, he said, he isn't |ooking for workers; it's
the parents comng to himwanting their kids to start to l|learn
how to work. He stated that all "we" are asking for is a waiver
on requiring the conm ssioner's signature because a |ot of these
situations cone up wth short notice, oftentinmes racing a
rai nstorm when trying to put in hay, and a person isn't going to
be nessing with paperwork then.

MR. DeVILBISS said "we're” willing to take the forns, sign them
get the proper signatures from the parents, and conform to all
of the restrictions. He nentioned that all of the other farm
states use the federal exenption, which isn't even noted on the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -12- March 26, 2001



back of the work permt or applied in Alaska. This conpletely
wai ves the hazardous restriction for Kkids ages sixteen to

ei ghteen working in agriculture. At this time, he said, "we"
only want to be able to have the work permits on file, the sane
for as payroll information and so forth.

Number 2395

MR, DeVILBISS stated that he's had many parents get angry when
he has told them that they had to get a signature from the
conmmi ssi oner of |abor before their kids can work for him He
said he doesn't cone to the commttee with a bad attitude, but
expressed that there is a tough |abor situation, which really
becanme apparent |ast year. He said he is growing organic
carrots, which require approximately 1,000 man-hours for every
acre to keep the weeds out; this doesn't have anything to do
wi th harvesting and bagging the carrots, he expressed. Wat was
typically done was to give a section of a field to a famly to
tend, and [the fam ly] would get half of the gross proceeds. He
was consoled to hear that when kids are working with their
parents in that situation, it is all right, although he said it
was difficult [to decipher] that fromreading the state | aw.

MR. DeVILBISS said he is forwarding the federal regulation, and
the state regulations from a couple of other states, to
Representative QOgan's office; those show how difficult [Al aska
has] nade it for agricultural [endeavors]. Wat is being asked
for is very mnimal, he said, and he asked the conmttee to
consider the bill.

TAPE 01-40, SIDE B
Nunber 2474

VICE CHAIR HALCRO asked M. DeVilbiss whether he knows every
year when his crops are going to be harvested.

MR. DeVILBISS replied that he knows within certain paraneters
but said nost of it is weather-rel ated. Wien asked whether he
knows the approximate tinmefranme, he answered affirmatively. And
when asked about M. Mastriano's offer to conme out and nake
hi nsel f available, and whether that mght be better than
elimnating the provision altogether, he responded that it would
certainly help. This fall when the carrot harvest started, he
had no clue how he was going to get the carrots in. At one
point, he'd just about decided that it wouldn't happen, because
by then, he knew the kids had to have this paperwork; nost of
them show up unannounced, because they've heard word-of-nouth.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -13- March 26, 2001



He said if M. Mastriano happened to be there, then it would
wor K.

Nunmber 2385

MR DeVILBISS surmsed that his farm would be open to M.
Mastriano's inspection anyway, so he didn't know why the work
permt information couldn't just be on file.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked how dangerous it is to harvest
carrots, and asked how the youths are being used in the carrot
harvesting process.

MR. DeVILBISS explained that alnmost all of the |abor that goes
into harvesting carrots is in the weeding, which is done on
hands and knees; there are no chemicals, and it is tedious work.
Part of [the fam|ly's] agreenent in taking care of that section

of the field is that it gets harvested as well, which involves
pulling the carrots out and putting theminto 1,000-pound boxes,
which are carried into the root cellar. It is certainly not
nore dangerous than [harvesting] hay. Most of the parents that
conme out are not concerned and are well aware of what their
children are capable of. He reiterated that he just wants to
hold the paperwork and mail it at a later date. He said "we"

are al so not asking to be exenpt from workers' conpensation. He
said he's never had a problem collecting workers' conpensation
on seasonal farm| abor.

MR. DeVILBISS expressed that he has had a few clainms over the
years, and there was never a problem his workers' conpensation
says exactly what people are going to be doing and the seasona
nature of it.

Nunber 2179

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked for verification from M.
DeVil biss that he doesn't use conveyor belts or machinery when
harvesting carrots.

MR. DeVILBISS replied affirmatively. He said the carrots are
pul l ed out of the ground by hand; once in a while, however, if
the ground is hard, he'll drive a lifter through that goes
underneath the carrot bed and |lifts the bed up. The only thing
that noves at any stage, he said, is when the carrots are being

bagged. There is a conveyor, which noves at one revolution
every ten mnutes that noves the carrots along so they can be
stuffed into bags. Upon being asked if the processing and

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -14- March 26, 2001



packaging is as |labor-intensive as the harvesting, M. DeVilbiss
replied that it is not as |abor-intensive but goes on a |ot
| onger and there are |ess people involved. During the carrot
harvest, there are days when 100 to 250 people are working in
the field; when the carrot bagging is done, a half a dozen
people normally do it.

Number 2081

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG conment ed that the comm ssioner of |abor
canme before this conmttee and indicated that there are probl ens
with mnors working in agriculture as it relates to conveyor
belts and other machinery, which, Representative Rokeberg said,
is of great concern to him He asked M. DeVilbiss if he is
famliar wth the federal requirenents for m nors working.

MR, DeVILBISS said he would be sending it to Representative

Qgan's office. The nost educational tool that a person could
have is the work pernmt, which he thought could be obtained in
Juneau. He explained that on the front side of the form the

parents, the enployer, and the comm ssioner have to sign; there
is also a requirement to sign as well a notice in big black
print up at the top that says that it nust be conpleted and
approved before mnor children begin work. The back of the form
lists all of the prohibitions for mnors and has the state and
federal laws that apply. He invited M. Mastriano out to view
his operation and let him know what kids could do, although he
t hought he was conplying with [the |aw].

Number 1991

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said the DLWD has the ability to wite
any regulations that it wants on child activities, and he said
he is concerned about that; the testinony from various
busi nesses throughout the state has been that it has becone
al nost i npossi ble to enpl oy underaged peopl e.

MR. DeVILBISS offered his assistance. Upon bei ng asked whet her
he uses hazardous chemicals on his organic carrot farm he
responded that [his farn] went conpletely organic this year, but
up to this time his farm only had certain fields that were
certified organic. On the organic fields, the only labor is
"hand" | abor, and the sane acre that takes 1,000 man-hours to
weed in an organic field can be weeded with $35 of chemicals in
a non-organic field.

Number 1883

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -15- March 26, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE KOIT asked M. Mstriano if there are any
occupations in [Alaska] for which work permts are not required.

MR. MASTRIANO replied in the negative, unless the parent of the
m nor owns the business. And when asked whether there are
occupations in which children under the age of fourteen can
work, he responded that these children can babysit, deliver
newspapers, and even be their own enployer, such as taking his
or her father's |awnnower and cutting |awns; however, it can't
be done for a business. And when asked what would be the
difference between a child under the age of fourteen picking
carrots or working in a cannery casing cans, M. Mstriano said
m nors under the age of sixteen can no longer work in [fish]
processing plants. Those under sixteen can work in an office in
a processing plant if the office is away fromthe plant.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT stated that he is not seeing the anendnent
that deleted this fromthe statute.

Nunmber 1806

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Mastriano if that was changed
by regul ation.

MR MASTRI ANO remar ked that he believed so.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES said if this legislation passes, this
doesn't just address farnms that don't use a |lot of equipnent;
this would open it up to any farm that uses industrial equipnent
or anything else. He asked whether that is correct.

MR. MASTRI ANO responded affirmatively and said it would affect
farms all over the state.

VI CE CHAI R HALCRO cl osed public testinony on HB 128.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said this fits right in with the issue
of working mnors and the training wage situation. He said
maybe people just throw their hands up in the air and don't even
want to deal wth the DLWD. He said probably nost of the
farmers in the state are knowi ngly or unknow ngly breaking the
| aw because of the difficulties. He said [the |egislature] had

better look into that. This needs to be expanded beyond j ust
agriculture, and this 1is a critical industry that [the
| egi sl ature] needs to be able to support. [ The state] has been

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -16- March 26, 2001



so concerned about protecting people that [people] can't even
get jobs.

Nunmber 1685

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT stated that he agrees with the concerns
expressed by Representative Rokeberg; however, even if the

permtting process is elimnated, the same problens wll exist
because nobst of those farnmers won't know the paraneters under
which children under eighteen can be hired. Unl ess the
restrictions are on the permt itself when receiving it, nost of
the farnmers will still be operating outside the confines of the
| aw.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG enphasi zed that he would like to know

what the federal law is and how it is handl ed. He said he
thinks it is up to this commttee, if it can come up with a new
format outlining the comm ssioners' responsibilities. He said

he thought M. DeVilbiss was suggesting that the nanmes be
submtted [to the division] and then kept on record along with a
description of the type of enploynent. And if there is a clear
need for the DLMD to look into it, [then that can happen], but
just to say no or delay the process, in his opinion, doesn't
wor K.

Nunber 1611

VICE CHAIR HALCRO said when he first read the bill packet he
thought it was al arm ng because there was an assertion here that
by the tinme [the work permt] wrked its way through the
bureaucracy the harvest season was over; yet, the testinony from
M. Mstriano was that it takes a couple of hours. [|f sonething
is faxed in and there is an imedi ate response, or if the only
reason one doesn't get an imredi ate response is because the form
is either inconplete or illegible, he said he doesn't see why
[the legislature] should elimnate all of these inportant
protections. And as M. Mastriano stated, [the division] has
deni ed applications in the past where mnors were working around
hazar dous chem cals or machinery. He said he doesn't see the
need for it. There was only testinony from one person, and this
person had problems with a fax machine. [If this legislation
passes] it wuld elimnate all of the requirenents and
conditions allowng any mnor who is at |east fourteen and who
can get consent from his or her parents to start working on a
farmw t hout any oversight fromthe DLWD.

Number 1560

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -17- March 26, 2001



VI CE CHAIR HALCRO said he agrees with |ess bureaucracy; however,
this puts sonme protections in place to protect those under
eighteen working in environnents that my or nmy not be
hazardous. He said he doesn't see the overwhel m ng need.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said he agreed with Representative Rokeberg
and thought that a |ot of people are out there breaking the |aw
who feel as [M. DeVilbiss] does. There are enough factors
wor ki ng  agai nst farmers w t hout having to deal wth a
bur eaucr acy.

Number 1471

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN said he suspected that Representative Myer
was correct. Whien an entire year's incone is lying in a field
and [the farmer] is required to fax 100 work permts [for
mnors] to pull carrots out of the ground, how asinine is that,
he asked. He said in one night, a whole year's incone could
freeze in the ground, and 100 faxes have to be faxed in to get
hel p? Sonme of these people are the biggest risk takers in the
wor |l d, he exclainmed - they and fi shernman.

VICE CHAIR HALCRO expressed his understanding, but asked if
throwing out the entire set of regulations as it pertains to
getting approval for those under seventeen is the way to do it.
M. DeVilbiss had stated that he knows every year when harvest
season is, he has anple time to plan, and as M. Mastriano
testified, it takes a couple of hours for turnaround. And M.
Mastriano has denonstrated the ability to go out and process
applications right there on-site. However, when getting down to
the question of whether regulations should be elimnated, he
said, "No." Not everyone has the sane type of farm and
elimnating these regulations will put workers at risk, wthout
proper protection. He said he isn't sure where the headache is.
He said if it is being said that 100 workers are going to be
needed i nmredi ately, then any business is going to need to plan a
little nore in advance.

Nunber 1237

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked about the hiring pattern.
REPRESENTATIVE OGAN said it depends on the situation; the
weat her could change very quickly, and when that happens, he

bets that the farners are just getting on the phone and calling
wor ker s. He said he would like to see if there is some way to

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 18- March 26, 2001



streamline this. For exanple, at the beginning of the season [a
mnor] applies for a permt, there is sign-off on what [the
enployer] can do with the [mnors]; everyone knows the rules,
and protections are in place. Once that is done, [the farm
owner] is subject to inspection. If the parents want to |et
their kid work, why should the state becone the parent, he
asked.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES requested verification of his understanding
that fourteen-year-olds can't do this work w thout being under
the direct supervision of their parents unless the parent owns
t he busi ness.

Number 1114

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN referred to Section 2(c), which read in
part:

A mnor who is at least fourteen years of age may be
enpl oyed in agriculture w t hout t he witten
aut hori zation of the comm ssioner [under (a)] of this
section if: [(1) the enployer] receive[s] consent form
[(A) both] the mnor's parents or guardian[s]; or from
par agraph (2): the mnor performs the work in the
physi cal presence of one of the mnors presence or
[l egal guardi ans].

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN explained that it is "either or." [Mnors]
could [work] as defined under subsection (c) or under paragraph

(2).
Nunber 1075

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT said this bill renoves the conmm ssioner's
responsibility to sign off on the work permt, but it doesn't
elimnate statutory requirenments regarding the hours or the
times that mnors can work. He said if his livelihood was
dependant on the tinme of year that he could pick his crops, he
woul d probably "throw caution to the w nd" on those statutes

He expressed that there are probably a lot of farners out there
who are not aware of the statutory requirenents or the
permtting requirenent. He asked M. Mastriano whet her the work
permt includes a copy of the statutes dealing with the five or
six areas that [the comm ttee] has been tal king about. He al so
asked whether the data on the permt is used for statistical
analysis to determ ne how nmany seasonal farm workers [Al aska]
has.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -19- March 26, 2001



MR. MASTRI ANO said he knows of no statistical data that is used
or gleaned fromthe process. [The division] keeps copies of the
work permts, and the original is sent back to the enployer
along with the proof of age if an original birth certificate was

used. When asked how long the work permts are good for, he
stated that a [new work permit is required] every tinme a mnor
obtains a new job. He said each work permt is job-specific,

and [the division] needs to know that the mnor isn't in a life-
t hreat eni ng or hazardous situation.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT, referring to M. DeVilbiss' situation,
asked M. Mastriano if he would be authorized to go to the high
school and recruit so that when the picking season began, M.
DeVil biss would just call [the m nors] to work.

Nunmber 0879

MR. MASTRIANO commented that that is exactly what the fish
processors do. [ Processors] get a contact nunber from these
people and call them in when they are needed. He said they can
certainly get the work permts on file, and [the permts] should
be in place before the child starts to work. When asked how
long the work permts are good for, and whether a farnmer could
submt work permts in May for the picking season in Septenber,
he replied affirmatively, as long as the child is "your"

enpl oyee. [ The division] has several enployers that hire Kkids
at fourteen with the sane work permt; the duties don't change,
and the enployee is still working there at age sixteen or
sevent een under the sanme work permt. The only thing that my

have changed is the rate of pay, which can be corrected on the
work permt.

MR. MASTRIANO explained that the only time the work permt
ceases to be any good is if the enployee quits the job and goes
to work el sewhere.

Nunmber 0685

VICE CHAIR HALCRO asked M. Mastriano about conpliance from
ot her areas of agricultural.

MR. MASTRIANO said he thought that Representative QOgan was
probably right: there are probably a nunber of farnmers who
don't submt work permts. There are a nunber of enployers that
don't believe in the work permt process, he said, and the only
time [the division] finds that out 1is by going out and

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 20- March 26, 2001



i nvestigating. If a mnor is found working wthout a work
permt, the enployer is given the appropriate paperwork in order
to get them right with the |aw He said the division has no
penal ty under statute; however, if it is a hazardous order, [the
DLMD] turns it into the United States Departnent of Labor
(usbAL), and [USDOL] would al so do an investigation.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Mastriano on what grounds work
permts are denied.

MR. MASTRIANO clarified that it could be either from [an
i nspection done or fromthe information on the work permt], but
nost of the tinme it is from the information that the enployer

puts down. For exanple, [the division] has had a nunber of
fifteen-year-olds enployed in restaurants that have a restaurant
desi gnat i on. They can't be enployed in that [category], he
expl ai ned, under the Alcoholic Beverage Control Board (ABC)
rules until sixteen years of age. Generally, [the division]

stanps "denied" on the application and calls the enployer to
informhimor her of the reason that the application was deni ed.
If it is [denied] due to [a restriction on] certain equipnent
and the enployer can allow the kid to do sonmething else, [the
division] will ask the enployer to resubmt the work permt
after elimnating the hazardous order on the permt. In that
case, there is a box on the permt showing an anended work
permt.

Number 0532

MR. MASTRI ANO, upon being asked if that is done over the phone
or out in the field, responded that both are done. If it is a
faxed application and can be addressed over the phone, that can
be done; however, sonetines [the division] will go out and do an
i nspection on-site. Ohtentines, the enployer tells [the
di vision] about a piece of equipnent that [the division] isn't
sure about, so the inspector will go out and do an inspection to
determ ne whether the piece of equipnment is hazardous. Si nce
Al aska uses the hazardous order guidelines set forth by the
USDOL, if there are any questions [the division] wll contact
the USDOL's child Iabor representative and explain the
equi pnent .

MR. MASTRI ANO, responding to a question about the nunber of work
permts issued by the DLWD |ast year, stated that there were
close to 11, 000. And he surmsed that Iless than 200 were
deni ed. He reiterated that a mnor can't work in a restaurant
with a restaurant designation until sixteen years of age, and he

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -21- March 26, 2001



stressed that this is not a DLW regulation but an ABC
regul ati on.

Nunmber 0367

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES said the statute states that only the
conm ssioner of |abor can sign off on work permts. He asked if
it could be the conm ssioner's designee.

MR. MASTRI ANO responded affirmatively. He said there is a
designee in the offices in Juneau, Fairbanks, and Anchorage.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he wanted to hold the bill over to
conpare Alaska's work permts to those in federal regulations,
to possibly come up with a nore streanmlined system that m ght
save noney.

VICE CHAIR HALCRO asked Representative Rokeberg if he was
vol unteering to chair a subcommittee.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG replied affirmatively.

VICE CHAIR HALCRO announced that HB 128 was being sent to a
subconm ttee chaired by Representative Rokeberg that would also
i ncl ude Representatives Meyer and Hayes.

[HB 128 was hel d over.]

ADJ OURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Labor and Conmerce Conmm ttee neeting was adjourned at 5:00 p. m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -22- March 26, 2001



